ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON M LI TARY AND
VETERANS' AFFAI RS
February 7, 2002
3:13 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Chair
Representative Lisa Murkowski
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
Representati ve Joe Hayes

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Beverly Masek
Representative Joe G een
Representative Pete Kott

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Richard Foster
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 20
Relating to declaring Septenber 11, 2002, as Energency Service
Provi ders and Arned Forces Appreciation Day.

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 33

Expressing gratitude to President George W Bush, to the
President's cabinet, and to the nen and wonen of the United
States arned forces and declaring support for the war on
terrorism

- MOVED CSHJR 33(M.V) QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HCR 20

SHORT TI TLE: EMERGENCY SERVI CE PROVI DER DAY
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) STEVENS

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action
01/ 14/ 02 1946 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -1- February 7, 2002



REFERRALS

01/ 14/ 02 1946 (H MLV
01/ 14/ 02 1946 (H REFERRED TO M.V
01/ 29/ 02 (H MLV AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 124
01/ 29/ 02 (H Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( M.V)
02/ 07/ 02 (H MLV AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

Bl LL: HJR 33
SHORT Tl TLE: SUPPORT WAR ON TERRORI SM
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) JAMVES

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/ 22/ 02 2028 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 22/ 02 2028 (H M.V

01/ 22/ 02 2028 (H REFERRED TO M.V

02/ 07/ 02 (H) M.V AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE GARY STEVENS

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 428

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HCR 20.

MARK JOHNSQN, Chi ef

Community Heal th & Enmergency Medical Services

Di vision of Public Health

Departnent of Health & Social Services

P.O Box 110616

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0616

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the intent behind
HCR 20.

REPRESENTATI VE JEANNETTE JAMES

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 214

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HIR 33.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-7, SIDE A
Number 0001

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 2- February 7, 2002



CHAIR MKE CHENAULT called the House Special Commttee on
Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs neeting to order at 3:13 p.m
Representatives Chenault, Mirkowski, G ssna, and Hayes were
present at the call to order.

HCR 20 - EMERGENCY SERVI CE PROVI DER DAY

Nunmber 0077

CHAI R CHENAULT announced the first order of business, HOUSE
CONCURRENT RESCLUTION NO. 20, Relating to declaring Septenber
11, 2002, as Enmergency Service Providers and Arnmed Forces
Appr eci ati on Day.

CHAI R CHENAULT pointed out a new proposed conmttee substitute
(CS) in packets. [Prepared by the committee aide, it bore the
title, "Relating to declaring Septenber 11, 2002, as a Day of
Renenbr ance. "]

Nunber 0116

REPRESENTATI VE GARY STEVENS, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor
noted that HCR 20 had been discussed at a previous neeting. He
poi nted out that [the proposed CS] asks the governor to declare
Sept enber 11, 2002, as a day of renenbrance. Included are [the
peopl e on] Flight 93 [which crashed in Pennsylvania on Septenber
11, 2001], as well as those who were at the Pentagon. He stated
the intention of paying respect to and honoring the people who
were so deeply involved in that tragedy. He expressed
satisfaction with the new proposed CS.

CHAI R CHENAULT voi ced appreciation for the cooperative effort to
try to "round this out"” so it [enconpasses] all of the groups
bei ng di scussed with regard to Septenber 11.

Number 0239

REPRESENTATI VE MJRKOABKI referred to the second "Wereas" clause
in the proposed CS, relating to Flight 93; she suggested that

the nane of the airline should be specified. She noted that
sonme people truly fought to take that plane down in order to
avoid the taking of nore human life [by the hijackers]. At

first, she expressed concern that the resolution talks about
everybody on that flight; she then acknow edged that all the
peopl e on the plane certainly sacrificed their lives.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 3- February 7, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS agreed it should say "Anmerican Airlines”
for clarity. He also agreed that everyone [on that flight]
sacrificed his or her life, even if unable to respond.

Number 0414

CHAI R CHENAULT clarified that the first "Whereas" clause deals
with New York City and the Wrld Trade Center, specifying the
343 firefighters and 23 police officers. [In the follow ng
"Whereas" clauses] Flight 93 is the flight [that went down] in
Pennsyl vania, and those who died in the attack on the Pentagon
are included.

Number 0527

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES proposed recognizing the people on the
ot her planes as well.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said that is a good point. He suggested
it may go best in the first "Wereas" clause, which deals with
New York City.

CHAI R CHENAULT offered that it could go after "collapsed". He
i ndicated perhaps the airlines and flight nunbers should be
speci fi ed.

Nunmber 0616

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWASKI suggested that if it were to be put
chronologically, the first "Wereas" clause mght recognize the
United Airlines and Anerican Airlines flights that crashed into
the Wrld Trade Center, as well as the lives |ost onboard; the
second "Wiereas" clause could cite the firefighters [and police
officers] who lost their lives there.

REPRESENTATI VE MJRKOASKI  turned attention to the "Wereas”
clause that nmentions the lives |ost at the Pentagon. She said

it sounds inpersonal to say "casualties". She proposed saying
that 125 lives were lost, so it sounds less like a mlitary
statistic.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS replied that he was confortable wth
t hat . He specified that it could read, "125 lives were lost in
the terrorist attack on the Pentagon".

Nunmber 0795

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -4- February 7, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE MJURKOWSKI asked whether the 125 included the
people on the airliner as well as those in the Pentagon.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS offered his belief that it was a
cunul ati ve total

Nunmber 0846

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES suggested specifying the flight nunber of
the plane [that crashed into the Pentagon], for consistency.

Number 0930

MARK JOHNSQON, Chief, Conmunity Health & Enmergency Medica

Services, Division of Public Health, Departnment of Health &
Soci al Services, cane forward to testify in support of the
intent behind the resol ution. Mentioning that he hadn't seen a
copy of the proposed CS, he pointed out that he'd noted a couple
of itens in the original bill that sound as if they have been
addr essed. He nentioned | aw enforcenent people who died in New
York City as an exanple.

MR, JOHNSON also said he was pleased that the resolution
recogni zes energency responders in Alaska; mny of them were
involved in responding to the events after Septenber 11. He
expressed hope that the revision would include those as well.
He pointed out that nost of the firefighters and EMS [energency
medi cal service] providers in Al aska are vol unteers.

Nunmber 1016

CHAI R CHENAULT announced that the resolution would be fine-tuned
and then brought back before the commttee on February 12.

Nunber 1062

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS recapped the earlier discussion. The
first "Wiereas" clause would deal with the two airplanes that
struck the Wrld Trade Center. What would becone the third
"Whereas" clause would relate to Flight 93; Anerican Airlines
woul d be added as a clarification. In the "Wereas" clause
about the Pentagon, included would be |anguage about [the
peopl e] aboard the flight, specifying the airline and the flight
nunber . He added that in response to M. Johnson's testinony,
he wanted to include a cormment in the next-to-the-last "Wereas"
cl ause about Al askan participants.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 5- February 7, 2002



CHAI R CHENAULT added that "lives lost" would be a change in the
fourth "Wereas" clause.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS concurred. [HCR 20 was held over. ]

HIR 33 - SUPPORT WAR ON TERRORI SM

Nunmber 1166

CHAI R CHENAULT announced the final order of business, HOUSE
JONT RESOLUTION NO 33, Expressing gratitude to President
George W Bush, to the President's cabinet, and to the nen and
wonen of the United States armed forces and declaring support
for the war on terrorism

Number 1170

REPRESENTATI VE  JEANNETTE  JAMES, Al aska State Legislature,
sponsor of HIR 33, explained that the [terrorist attacks] on
Septenber 11, 2001, forced recognition of how serious the
terrorist issue is globally. "They're in our mdst, and they're
everywhere," she said. Enphasizing that time is of the essence,
she said this issue nmust be put on the top of the list.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES suggested that the nost discouragi ng aspect

is a feeling of powerlessness. Furthernore, a suspicion of
others "totally destroys our own basic freedons that we have in
this country that we ... |Ilike so very nuch,” she said.

Representative Janmes proposed that a hard line nust be taken in
order to defeat [the attitudes by the perpetrators that led to
the attacks]; she cited poverty and despair as factors in the
"fertile ground"” that results in these kinds of problens in many
countries, which often are managed by dictatorships. She stated
the need for the nation to "reach our hand out to help sone of
t hese other people be able to help thenselves to rid thensel ves
of this scourge.™

Number 1353

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES told nenbers she believes the inportance of
having a resolution is that "the people who are there with this
assignnment didn't necessarily ask for this assignnent when they
went there.” She said al nbst everyone nationw de supports the
efforts to "rid ourselves of this scourge.” She expressed her
belief that Al askans are behind these efforts, as is the whole
nati on. Even though Al askans are a long way from [where the
particul ar attacks occurred], Valdez and the oil pipeline have

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 6- February 7, 2002



been listed as valid targets, she noted. Therefore, she is
voi ci ng support and gratitude [through the resolution].

Nunber 1443

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES brought attention to an anendnent proposed
by Representative Cissna [|later adopted as Amendnent 3], | abel ed
22-LS1314\ A. 1, Cook, 2/7/02, which read:

Page 1, line 3, following "terrorisnt:
Insert "and for the President's effort to support
denocraci es and pronote peace worl dw de"

Page 2, line 8, following "terrorisnt:

Insert "; and be it

FURTHER RESCLVED t hat t he Al aska State
Legislature declares support for the President's
effort to support denocracies and pronote peace
wor | dwi de"

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES advi sed nenbers that she supports the idea
behi nd t he anendnent and believes it makes HIR 33 stronger.

Number 1490

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES remarked that she wouldn't be surprised to
wake up sonme norning to find [another attack], but enphasized
the inportance of "getting on with our lives." She again
expressed gratitude that people are taking care of this issue in
a direct way, doing their best to try to get rid of this
scourge. She offered to answer questions.

Number 1552

REPRESENTATI VE MJURKOWBKI noted that although perhaps Al askans
feel a nodicum of safety [fromterrorist attacks] because of the
geographical Ilocation, nmany serious issues still arise. She
agreed that it is inportant to send a nessage thanking these
peopl e for what they are doing. Calling it a timely resol ution,
she suggested perhaps it should have been sent even earlier.

REPRESENTATI VE =~ MURKOWEKI noted that HIR 33 specifically
recogni zes the efforts of Secretary of State [Colin Powell],
Secretary of Defense [Donald Runsfeld], and Director of Honel and
Security [Tom Ridge]; she suggested adding them to the
distribution list as well. She suggested perhaps doing the sane

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -7- February 7, 2002



for the Joint Chief of Staff, so that the nessage could get to
the nmenbers of the arned services.

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWSBKI al so proposed having a reference to the
Nati onal CGuard. She said the guard certainly "hopped to" in all
50 states in order to address any contingenci es.

Nunmber 1681

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES i ndi cated agreenent. She added that the
National CGuard wll have an increasing role in protecting
[ Aneri cans]. She also noted that the President is encouraging
nore people to go into the Peace Corps, for exanple. She

pointed out that not only nust terrorism be fought, but also
there nmust be a plan "that hel ps these people to help thensel ves
in their freedom issues that they have and being able to

help these little places where they just don't have the
wherewi thal or the power to nake changes."” She added, "If we
have people willing to go do that, | think we should probably
recogni ze that." She restated her willingness to add that as an
amendnent .

Nunber 1779

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWSKI noved to adopt [conceptual] Amendnent
1, on page 2, line 2, after "Coast Guard", to insert "the
Nat i onal Guard" and fix the grammar and comras.

CHAIR CHENAULT asked whether there was any objection. [ No
obj ection was stated, and Anendnment 1 was treated as adopted.]
Nunber 1824

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWBKI noved to adopt [conceptual] Anendnent
2, on page 2, line 12, after "Congress", to insert "Secretary of
State Colin Powell, Secretary of Defense Donald Runsfeld,
Director of Honmeland Security Tom Ridge", and whoever the Joint
Chief of Staff is. There being no objection, Anendnent 2 was
adopt ed.

Nunber 1874

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA noved to adopt Anmendnent 3, |abeled 22-
LS1314\ A. 1, Cook, 2/7/02 [text provided previously].

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 8- February 7, 2002



CHAI R CHENAULT objected in order to ask whether this is the
correct format; he renoved his objection after a  brief
expl anati on was of fered.

Nunber 2040

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES objected to Anendnent 3, noting that
anendnents he would offer may conflict. He expressed concern
about |eaving out Congress. He suggested the first "Wereas"
clause could say "the federal governnent has shown | eadership,
using their offices [and so forth]"; it then would Ilist

President Bush, the Secretaries, and so on, and would include
Congress. The resolution would require another "Wereas" clause
di scussing Congress also, which has just as nuch relevance in
this, he said, as the President and his cabinet. Furt her nore,
under the "Be It Resolved" section, it would still need to
either say "the federal governnment, as [an] ommibus” or include
Congr ess.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES explained that it is nice to recognize the
President by hinself, but the current |anguage |eaves out a

| arge part [of the governnent]. He pointed out that if there
were a resolution recognizing Al aska's governor, |egislators
woul d object [to not being included]. Furthernore, HIR 33 is to

be sent to Al aska's congressional delegation, although Congress
isn't even recognized init.

Nunber 2135

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES respectfully disagreed, saying it isn't the
purpose for which she did it. "It's not to nake a laundry |ist
of everyone who has participated and who hasn't," she said.
Al though the majority of Congress has supported [the war on
terrorisn], there has been sone dispute, she noted. She said
she didn't think it was appropriate, although perhaps she could
think about it further. She suggested that if it would nake

Representative Hayes happier, Alaska's congressional delegation
could be left out [of the distribution list] specifically, wth
all nmenbers of Congress to receive a copy instead.

[ Representative Hayes didn't respond verbally, but indicated he
didn't agree with this |ast suggestion.]

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES concl uded by sayi ng she didn't understand.

Nunber 2200

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 9- February 7, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE HAYES offered his understanding that as far as
the war on terrorism goes, there is no opposition in Congress;
rather, there is opposition regarding donmestic policies that
have no relevance to the war on terrorism In the federal
gover nnment , he noted, there has been quite of bit of
bi parti sanship when it has involved financing the war on
terrorismand supporting the troops.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES sai d he understood the desire to not have a
laundry list. He reiterated his earlier suggestion to begin the
resolution with the federal government, followed by specific
"Wher eas" cl auses [that include Congress].

Number 2250

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES responded that it isn't intended to be a
parti san issue. The President happens to be commander in chief
of the mlitary, and that is where the |leadership in this
particular issue cones from She suggested that encouraging
[ President Bush] fully regarding this issue covers the breadth
of the issue. She said everyone knows that other folks are
supporting this issue. "I don't want to nmake this appear to be
partisan or nonpartisan or bipartisan or partisan at all," she
added. "This has to do with the commander in [chief] and the
deci sions that have been nmade at the top level,” she concl uded.
"And that was ny intent."

Nunber 2316

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES replied that he wouldn't want to vote
against this or any other resolution. However, it would be
shortsighted to not recognize the work Congress did. At | east
theoretically, if the plane [that crashed in Pennsylvania on
Septenber 11, 2001] had found its target, there mght not be a
Congress right now "I think we should recognize the work that

t hose brave nmen and wonen are al so doing," he added, noting that
the President has to obtain funds from Congress in order to

declare war. "The Congress is an integral part of this process,
and | just think that you have to recognize them - sonme way,
shape, or form- in this, or you're leaving out a |large chunk of
your ... governnent," Representative Hayes concl uded.

Nunmber 2361

REPRESENTATI VE MJURKOABKI remarked that she understands where the
sponsor is comng from President Bush represents and
synbolizes the governnent, in addition to being an individual

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -10- February 7, 2002



She said she had no problem with singling him out, since he
| eads "fromthe top down."

REPRESENTATI VE MJRKOWSKI  then suggested that Representative
Hayes could resolve his objection by adding Congress in the "Be
It Resolved" clause [page 2, beginning on line 4] where the
| egislature is expressing gratitude to the President, his
cabinet, and the nen and wonen of the arned forces for their
| eadership and sacrifice.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said she had no problemw th that.
Nunmber 2428

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES replied that it is acceptable to himto a
poi nt . If it just expressed gratitude to the President for the
great job he has done, that would be fine with him However, it
highlights [in the "Wereas" clauses and the title] his cabinet,
the Secretary of State, the Secretary of Defense, and the
Director of Honeland Security - who is new in the position and
hasn't really done a lot vyet. If people other than the
President are included, then Congress also should be comended
for the bipartisan manner in which it worked to achieve victory

t 0o. It should be either all or just the President, he again
pr oposed.

Number 2489

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWSKI suggested another conpromise, in the
first "Wereas" clause: "recogni zing that [President] Bush has
shown | eadership at honme, using his office to rally the nation
and Congress". She explained that the President has rallied
Congress and set the exanple and tone; Congress, reasonably, has
foll omed. She added, "I think it's kind of superfluous nyself."

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES proposed the wording, "rallied Congress and
t he nation".

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said she would like to have Representative
G ssna's anendnent [Amendnent 3] approved.

Nunmber 2560

CHAIR CHENAULT asked whether there was any objection to
Amendnent 3. There being no objection, Arendnent 3 was adopt ed.

Number 2570

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -11- February 7, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE MJRKOWSKI canme up wth another proposal [to
address the concerns of Representative Hayes], on page 1, line
8, to have it say "shown | eadership nationally and
internationally, building a broad coalition of nations to
support the fight against terrorisnf. She said [President Bush]
has shown | eadership throughout the country, which is reflected
in Congress. Further in the resolution, then, Congress could be
t hanked in the "Resol ved" section.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES indicated agreenent wth that idea, but
again pointed out that the "Wereas" section of the resolution
highlights three nen from the President's cabinet; he said he
doesn't see why it can't include Congress there as well. He
reiterated that Congress is who presents the budget that allows
this war on terrorism

Nunber 2651

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWABKI noved to adopt Anendnent 4, on page 2,
line 5 [in the "Be It Resolved" section], after "the President's
cabinet,” to insert the U S. Congress. There being no
obj ection, Anendnent 4 was adopt ed.

Nunmber 2685

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES i ndi cated he needed nore tinme to arrive at
wording regarding the addition of Congress in the "Wereas"
section. He asked whether the resolution could be held over.

CHAIR CHENAULT noted that the conmmttee had noved in the
direction of including Congress by adopting Anendnent 4. He
stated his intention of noving the resolution from comittee,
however . He acknow edged that perhaps Representative Hayes
hadn't received his commttee packet earlier enough to draft
anendnent s.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES announced that he would conme up with an
anendnent for the House fl oor.

Number 2778

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWSKI noved to report HIR 33, as anended, out
of committee wth i ndi vi dual recomrendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHIR

33(MV) was reported from the House Special Commttee on
MIlitary and Veterans' Affairs.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -12- February 7, 2002



ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Commttee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs neeting was
adj ourned at 3:57 p.m

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -13- February 7, 2002



